CITY OF HANOVER
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 — OFFICIAL MINUTES

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance:

Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, September 7, 2021, to order at 7:00 p.m.
Present were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Ken Warpula and Thomas Dierberger. Also present was
City Administrator Brian Hagen, City Engineer Nick Preisler, Public Works Supervisor Jason
Doboszenski and Accountant Jackie Heinz. No Guests were present. Absent were Jim Zajicek and
MaryAnn Hallstein.

Approval of Agenda:

Hagen noted that pursuant to M.S. 13D.021, Councilor Dierberger was attending via phone and that all
votes would be conducted via roll call.

MOTION by Warpula to approve the agenda, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried unanimously.

Consent Agenda:

MOTION by Warpula to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Dierberger.
a. Approve Minutes of August 17, 2021 City Council Work Session Meeting
b. Approve Claims as Presented:

» Claims $ 102,549.93
> Payroll $ 11,202.99
> P/R taxes & Exp $ 4,022.05
> Other Claims $ 2.675.03
» Total Claims $ 120.450.00

b. Res No 09-07-21-67 — Approving Purchase of Turnout Gear
¢. Res No 09-07-21-68 — Adopting 2022 Preliminary Budget & Levy
Motion carried unanimously.

Citizen’s Forum
None

Public Hearing

Continued Nuisance Hearing — 11572 Meadowbrook Ave NE
Hagen stated updated photos are provided, with minimal progress made from what Ms. Sorsoleil had
indicated at the last meeting. The parking pad is not done and Hagen hasn’t had any conversations with
Sorsoleil. Kauffman recommended tabling the issue until snow flies. Hagen clarified October or
November, Kauffman stated the first meeting in November.
MOTION by Kauffman to continue the nuisance hearing until November 2, 2021, seconded by Warpula.
Motion carried unanimously.

Unfinished Business
None

New Business

Res No 09-07-21-69 — Approving WSB Proposal for CSAH 19 Improvement Project
Preisler stated the proposal included in the packet has been reviewed by Wright County and they are in
concurrence. Preisler stated the city is leading the design effort. WSB will work with residents and
businesses to make the best decisions. Preisler further stated the costs included in the proposal are split



between city and County and are not final. Preisler continued to go through the three payment phases,
stating Wright County has estimated the total cost of the project to be between $7M and $9M, WSB
estimates the total cost to be between $5M and $6M with the city share to be $2M. Kauffman inquired if
the $200,000 in estimating fees are included in that total, Preisler stated yes.

Kauffman referenced a Joint Powers project on 94 which was rejected and rebid at the same price, but
Joint Powers portion went up $500,000. Preisler stated Joint Powers decided to replace utilities at the
same time. Kauffman stated whoever controls the bidding process has the power. Preisler agreed, stating
bids will be on the same items. Kauffman inquired if there was a solid design yet. Preisler stated that is
what phase 1 is for, they will have a better idea of costs after the preliminary phase. Kauffman stated
design is a concern. Warpula stated the project is not benefiting the city and recommended going to the
County and stating Hanover won’t pay for any part of the project. Kauffman inquired about renegotiating
the project. Preisler stated its policy, if the County takes over the design the city is still on the hook.
Kauffman inquired about changing the city percent. Preisler stated the City may be able to negotiate,
however, the percentage utilized to date follows what has been county board approved in their policy and
is not specific to Hanover.

Warpula stated the project is not benefiting any Hanover resident and suggested meeting with the County
Board to discuss. Preisler stated WSB is staying on the higher end of estimates. Hagen asked Preisler to
touch on state aid. Preisler stated Wright County receives state aid, a portion of that is dedicated to CSAH
19. Preisler further stated Local Road Improvement Project (LRIP) Funds are set aside by the County for
cities like Hanover which can’t get state aid for road projects. The funds can’t be used on a city street,
but CSAH 19 is eligible. Kauffman inquired what Wright County is using to fund road projects, Preisler
state the local option sales tax.

Kauffman inquired how much could Hanover get from the county’s LIRP funds, Preisler stated it would
be set by the county, an application would need to be completed. Kauffman stated to get the process
going. Preisler stated Hagen and himself could get ball rolling and eventually come to council. Preisler
further stated Wright County has been very clear this is a joint project and there will be public engagement.

Warpula stated Tom Thumb will take a big hit depending on design of the road. Preisler stated they plan
to bring three options for design to the table. Warpula stated Matt from Tom Thumb is concerned about
southbound traffic passing him and coming back. Preisler stated after feedback is received, if a median is
a no, we will revisit the plans and numbers.

Kauffman inquired when LRIP funds are distributed, Preisler stated it varies but could look to see when
it has occurred historically, Hanover hasn’t had an eligible project yet. Kauffman inquired if Hennepin
County has the funds as well, Preisler stated yes. Kauffman inquired about getting money for County
Road 19 on the Hennepin side of the city. Preisler stated a data request would need to be done, would
need to look at the entire corridor and break it down.

Dierberger stated he feels the city is being railroaded and would like to have public engagement and
feedback. Preisler stated there would be three design alternatives prepared after the public engagement
occurred. Warpula stated WSB will do good, they take projects to heart. Hagen stated the cooperative
agreement has been approved with the intentions to start the public engagement and design process now
instead of a year from now if the county managed the project. If the project is a no go due to funding then
we should not proceed forward, however, we would have a stronger application for outside funding
sources if we have a preliminary design and construction estimates established. This phase of the project



is crucial to identifying a design and preparing better cost estimates. Dierberger stated he’d like to table
until a full council is available for discussion.

MOTION by Warpula to table discussion until full council can meet and staff has LRIP Fund information,
seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried unanimously.

Res No 09-07-21-70 — Approving Purchase of Public Works Vehicle

Hagen stated included in the packet is a resolution to approve a new truck purchase for public works, this
will replace the Ford F250. Doboszenski explained the uses of the new vehicle. Hagen stated we can’t
put an order in for a Ford until spring 2022, if we order the Chevy now, it’s about 6 months out. Hagen
further stated it’s a $2,700 price difference from a regular cab to crew cab. Warpula inquired if this
purchase is on the capital improvement plan, Hagen stated yes. Warpula inquired on the estimated price
in the capital plan, Hagen was unsure but estimated $45,000 to $50,000. Warpula asked Doboszenski if
he needed a long box, Doboszenski stated 6.5’ box would work. Kauffman inquired on the use,
Doboszenski stated the same as the Ford, to pull trailers, etc. Warpula inquired why it’s a 2500 instead
of a 3500, Doboszenski stated with the 5500, a 3500 isn’t needed. Warpula inquired what are the plans
for the Ford, Doboszenski stated to sell it.

MOTION by Warpula to approve Res No 09-07-21-70, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried
unanimously.

Auditing Services Contract
Hagen stated the city paid $22,000 for the 2020 audit and $6,250 for the 2020 FRA audit. Warpula
inquired how Hanover compares to other cities. Hagen stated it’s hard to compare to other cities.
Kauffman stated he reached out on LMC, and Rockford is at $35,000 and Corcoran is at $40,000. Hagen
stated we’ve been with KDV since the early 90’s. Warpula inquired about going to KDV and asking about
the price. Hagen stated that would be a decent start. Kauffman inquired if a proposal had been received
yet, Hagen stated no. Council consensus to talk with KDV and negotiate a price.

Reports
Doboszenski
e Bored into the berm in Settlers Park and found the west side has 4’ of black dirt, middle has 3’ and
the east side has 6” then all rock. Preisler stated we need a survey crew; plan is to have Public
Works clear the wood and get it done with fall.
e Mastic was completed in the K’s, 5" Street and Church Street
Preisler
e Chip Seal will begin Wednesday morning, will be a one-day project, Public Works will sweep it
the following Monday and then fog seal on the 15%.
e On September 15" St. Michael will be connecting to the water main at Kadler and County Road
34
Heinz
e Concert in the Park has been rescheduled to Thursday, September 16" at 5:00 pm
Hagen
e No Site Plans from Big Bore or River Inn, they have until the end of September
e Hilltop will be extending their site plan reviewing to February



Adjournment
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 8:02 p.m., seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVED BY:

Chris Kauffman, Mayor
ATTEST:

Brian Hagen, City Administrator



